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Harriet Tubman Charter School 

1176 Franklin Avenue 

Bronx NY 10456 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 

1176 Franklin Avenue 

Bronx NY 10456 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
9 METROTECH CENTER   BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

Public Buildings Unit 
DATE: 09.06.2018. 

PREMISES 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted an 

inspection of the above-referenced premises on 12.14.2017. 

XXX The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized 

to inspect and enforce. 

Note: Re-inspection conducted on 08.31.2018 resulted in dismissal of Violation Order E507423 

issued on 12.14.2017 

The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations 

that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce. 

As of XXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed 

acceptable to FDNY 

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with 

the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings. 

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the 

premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols. 

This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any 

deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with 

the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations. 

Examined by: _________________________________________ 

Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Harriet Tubman Charter School 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #9 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Cleveland Person 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: MBAF CPAs, LLC 
School Audit Contact Name: Marc Taub 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter Included 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





     
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

917,912 
849,347 

-
32,313 

-
1,799,572 

406,363 
75,000 

128,900 
85,000 

695,263 

2,494,835 

$ 

$ 

2017 

353,994 
773,170 

-
8,663 

-
1,135,827 

676,880 
75,000 

228,900 
170,000 

1,150,780 

2,286,607 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

676,003 
489,446 

-
-
-

14,164 
106,346 

1,285,959 

-
40,320 

-
-

40,320 

1,326,279 

$ 

$ 

285,405 
673,536 

-
-
-
-

153,414 

1,112,355 

-
67,200 

-
-

67,200 

1,179,555 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 1,168,556 
-
-

1,168,556 

$ 1,081,687 
25,365 

-
1,107,052 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,494,835 2,286,607 



     
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

Harriet Tubman Charter School
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 10,173,460 
-
-

1,126,537 
-

57,705 
-

11,357,702 

$ -
-
-
-
-

(25,365) 
-

(25,365) 

$ 10,173,460 
-
-

1,126,537 
-

32,340 
-

11,332,337 

$ 10,460,394 
-
-

881,910 
-

7,715 
-

11,350,019 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 8,578,794 
1,724,594 

-
10,303,388 

960,010 
7,435 

11,270,833 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,578,794 
1,724,594 

-
10,303,388 

960,010 
7,435 

11,270,833 

$ 10,129,986 
-
-

10,129,986 
691,258 
4,622 

10,825,866 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 86,869 (25,365) 61,504 524,153 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

Other Support and Revenue 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

86,869 

$ -

(25,365) 

$ -

61,504 

$ -

524,153 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 1,081,687 
-

$ 25,365 
-

$ 1,107,052 
-

$ 582,899 
-



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 1,168,556 $ - $ 1,168,556 $ 1,107,052 



     
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 

$ 61,504 
-

(76,177) 
-

506,497 
-

$ 524,153 
-

(148,101) 
-

428,489 
-

Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 

-
(23,650) 
390,598 

(184,090) 
-

-
(8,663) 

(154,220) 
(18,175) 

-
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 

-
73,120 
14,164 

-
-

-
(50,371) 

-
-
-

Other 
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 

-
761,966 $ 

-
573,112 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

(150,980) 
-

(150,980) 

$ 

$ 

(244,861) 
-

(244,861) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

$ 
(47,068) 

-

$ 
(44,665) 

-
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ (47,068) $ (44,665) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

563,918 
428,994 
992,912 

$ 

$ 

283,586 
145,408 
428,994 



     
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
Total 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

12.00 
72.00 
13.00 
97.00 

$ 
600,137 

2,782,671 
656,449 

4,039,257 
1,255,086 

373,003 
-
-
-

608,203 

650,143 
341,975 

72,021 
123,640 
148,824 

13,273 
98,444 

171 
88,021 

304,794 
69,998 
61,756 

314,427 
15,758 

$ 8,578,794 

$ 
86,337 

760,846 
80,805 

927,988 
133,595 

85,695 
-
-
-

119,073 

149,365 
78,566 
16,546 
28,405 
14,037 

3,049 
22,617 

39 
20,222 
28,748 

6,602 
14,188 
72,237 
3,622 

$ 1,724,594 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

686,474 
3,543,517 

737,254 
4,967,245 
1,388,681 

458,698 
-
-
-

727,276 

799,508 
420,541 

88,567 
152,045 
162,861 

16,322 
121,061 

210 
108,243 
333,542 

76,600 
75,944 

386,664 
19,380 

10,303,388 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

7,435 
-
-
-

$ 7,435 

$ 
273,898 

-
173,582 
447,480 

96,768 
41,322 

-
90,000 
31,250 
50,480 

72,025 
37,885 

7,979 
13,697 

-
1,470 

10,906 
19 

9,751 
-
-

12,400 
34,833 
1,745 

$ 960,010 

$ 

$ 

273,898 
-

173,582 
447,480 

96,768 
41,322 

-
90,000 
31,250 
50,480 

72,025 
37,885 

7,979 
13,697 

-
1,470 

10,906 
19 

9,751 
-

7,435 
12,400 
34,833 
1,745 

967,445 



Harriet Tubman Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

     
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
960,372 

3,543,517 
910,836 

5,414,725 
1,485,449 

500,020 
-

90,000 
31,250 

777,756 

$ 
586,916 

3,523,931 
1,148,003 
5,258,850 
1,363,525 

519,929 
-
-

91,957 
886,503 

$ 

871,533 
458,426 

96,546 
165,742 
162,861 

17,792 
131,967 

229 
117,994 
333,542 

84,035 
88,344 

421,497 
21,125 

11,270,833 $ 

825,067 
250,963 
109,115 
180,500 
162,866 

17,048 
120,212 

150 
92,249 

328,997 
101,217 
105,329 
343,489 
67,900 

10,825,866 



       

       

     

   
    

    

      

   
   
   

     
   
   
   

 
 

           

         
              

 
        

                
             

              
             

           

 

  

   

  

Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Harriet Tubman Charter School 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #9 

School Fiscal Contact Name: 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: MBAF CPAs, LLC 
School Audit Contact Name: Marc Taub 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter Included 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





     
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

917,912 
849,347 

-
32,313 

-
1,799,572 

406,363 
75,000 

128,900 
85,000 

695,263 

2,494,835 

$ 

$ 

2017 

353,994 
773,170 

-
8,663 

-
1,135,827 

676,880 
75,000 

228,900 
170,000 

1,150,780 

2,286,607 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

676,003 
489,446 

-
-
-

14,164 
106,346 

1,285,959 

-
40,320 

-
-

40,320 

1,326,279 

$ 

$ 

285,405 
673,536 

-
-
-
-

153,414 

1,112,355 

-
67,200 

-
-

67,200 

1,179,555 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 1,168,556 
-
-

1,168,556 

$ 1,081,687 
25,365 

-
1,107,052 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,494,835 2,286,607 



     
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

Harriet Tubman Charter School
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 10,173,460 
-
-

1,126,537 
-

57,705 
-

11,357,702 

$ -
-
-
-
-

(25,365) 
-

(25,365) 

$ 10,173,460 
-
-

1,126,537 
-

32,340 
-

11,332,337 

$ 10,460,394 
-
-

881,910 
-

7,715 
-

11,350,019 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 8,578,794 
1,724,594 

-
10,303,388 

960,010 
7,435 

11,270,833 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,578,794 
1,724,594 

-
10,303,388 

960,010 
7,435 

11,270,833 

$ 10,129,986 
-
-

10,129,986 
691,258 
4,622 

10,825,866 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 86,869 (25,365) 61,504 524,153 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-

Other Support and Revenue 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

86,869 

$ -

(25,365) 

$ -

61,504 

$ -

524,153 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 1,081,687 
-

$ 25,365 
-

$ 1,107,052 
-

$ 582,899 
-



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 1,168,556 $ - $ 1,168,556 $ 1,107,052 



     
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 

$ 61,504 
-

(76,177) 
-

506,497 
-

$ 524,153 
-

(148,101) 
-

428,489 
-

Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 

-
(23,650) 
390,598 

(184,090) 
-

-
(8,663) 

(154,220) 
(18,175) 

-
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 

-
73,120 
14,164 

-
-

-
(50,371) 

-
-
-

Other 
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 

-
761,966 $ 

-
573,112 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

(150,980) 
-

(150,980) 

$ 

$ 

(244,861) 
-

(244,861) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

$ 
(47,068) 

-

$ 
(44,665) 

-
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ (47,068) $ (44,665) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

563,918 
428,994 
992,912 

$ 

$ 

283,586 
145,408 
428,994 



     
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
Total 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

12.00 
72.00 
13.00 
97.00 

$ 
600,137 

2,782,671 
656,449 

4,039,257 
1,255,086 

373,003 
-
-
-

608,203 

650,143 
341,975 

72,021 
123,640 
148,824 

13,273 
98,444 

171 
88,021 

304,794 
69,998 
61,756 

314,427 
15,758 

$ 8,578,794 

$ 
86,337 

760,846 
80,805 

927,988 
133,595 

85,695 
-
-
-

119,073 

149,365 
78,566 
16,546 
28,405 
14,037 

3,049 
22,617 

39 
20,222 
28,748 

6,602 
14,188 
72,237 
3,622 

$ 1,724,594 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

686,474 
3,543,517 

737,254 
4,967,245 
1,388,681 

458,698 
-
-
-

727,276 

799,508 
420,541 

88,567 
152,045 
162,861 

16,322 
121,061 

210 
108,243 
333,542 

76,600 
75,944 

386,664 
19,380 

10,303,388 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

7,435 
-
-
-

$ 7,435 

$ 
273,898 

-
173,582 
447,480 

96,768 
41,322 

-
90,000 
31,250 
50,480 

72,025 
37,885 

7,979 
13,697 

-
1,470 

10,906 
19 

9,751 
-
-

12,400 
34,833 
1,745 

$ 960,010 

$ 

$ 

273,898 
-

173,582 
447,480 

96,768 
41,322 

-
90,000 
31,250 
50,480 

72,025 
37,885 

7,979 
13,697 

-
1,470 

10,906 
19 

9,751 
-

7,435 
12,400 
34,833 
1,745 

967,445 



Harriet Tubman Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

     
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
960,372 

3,543,517 
910,836 

5,414,725 
1,485,449 

500,020 
-

90,000 
31,250 

777,756 

$ 
586,916 

3,523,931 
1,148,003 
5,258,850 
1,363,525 

519,929 
-
-

91,957 
886,503 

$ 

871,533 
458,426 

96,546 
165,742 
162,861 

17,792 
131,967 

229 
117,994 
333,542 

84,035 
88,344 

421,497 
21,125 

11,270,833 $ 

825,067 
250,963 
109,115 
180,500 
162,866 

17,048 
120,212 

150 
92,249 

328,997 
101,217 
105,329 
343,489 
67,900 

10,825,866 
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October 31, 2018 

To the Audit Committee 
Harriet Tubman Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Harriet Tubman Charter School (the “School”) for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 and are prepared to issue our report thereon dated October 31, 2018. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. This letter is 
divided into two sections: 1) required communications from the auditors to those with audit oversight 
responsibilities and 2) opportunities for strengthening internal controls or enhancing operating 
efficiency and our related recommendations. 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 

As stated in our engagement letter April 18, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management 
with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or 
management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Harriet Tubman Charter 
School. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and 
not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. We are responsible for 
communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional judgment, 
relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

B. Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit: 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our meeting about planning matters in July 2018. 

C. Auditor Independence: 

We affirm that MBAF CPAs, LLC is independent with respect to Harriet Tubman Charter School. 

D. Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices: 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by Harriet Tubman Charter School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. We 
noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized 
in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 

An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 

MBAF CPAs
 
NEW YORK 440 Park Avenue South, 3rd Floor, New York NY 10016 | T 212 576 1400 F 212 576 1414  | www.mbafcpa.com
 

VALHALLA 400 Columbus Avenue, Suite 200E, Valhalla NY 10595 | T 914 741 0800 F 914 741 1034 | www.mbafcpa.com
 

http:www.mbafcpa.com
http:www.mbafcpa.com


 

 

    

 
   

 
  

  
 

   
    

 
 

  
    

   
      

   
 

   
 

 
 

  
    

 
 

 
           

    
     

  
 

    
 

 
  

   
 

  
   

 
   
 

  
     

   
 

 
 

E. Accounting Estimates Used in the Financial Statements: 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting 
the financial statements were: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: 
As of June 30, 2018, Harriet Tubman Charter School recorded grants receivable of 
$845,790. Management concluded that no allowance for doubtful accounts was necessary. 
Management calculated based on the assessment of the credit-worthiness of the School’s 
grantors, the aged basis of the receivables, as well as economic conditions and historical 
information. Based on our audit procedures which included a discussion with the School fiscal 
Consultant and a test of subsequent collections, we concur with management’s conclusion. 

Depreciation: 
Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives of assets. We 
evaluated the estimated useful of assets in comparison to accounting principles generally 
accepted in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Functional Statement Allocation: 
Management's estimate of the allocation of functional expenses is directly identified with the 
program or supporting service to which they relate. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

F. Sensitive Disclosures Affecting the Financial Statements: 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the financial statements were: 

The disclosure of risk management in Note 5 to the financial statements describes various risks 
to which the School is exposed. 

G. Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements: 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. We will identify those 
adjustments proposed both corrected and uncorrected: 
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Proposed and Corrected: 

In the current year, there were 4 audit adjustments that increased the net assets by $6,273. The most 
significant audit adjustments were the following: 

1) To reclassify $11,375 current year TRS EE contribution expenses that was not properly 
included in Accounts Payable. 

2) To reclassify $19,504 repairs and maintenance to furniture and fixtures and record depreciation 
for $1,857. 

Proposed and Uncorrected: 

There were no audit adjustments proposed and uncorrected. 

H. Audit Difficulties and Disagreements with Management: 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. 

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

I. Management Representations: 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 31, 2018. 

J. Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants: 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the School's financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 

K. Other Audit Findings or Issues: 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our retention. 
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OPPORTUNITIES FOR STRENGTHENING INTERNAL CONTROLS OR ENHANCING 
OPERATING EFFICIENCY 

Personnel File Testing: 

Our testing of personnel records revealed that there were one instance of a missing offer letter. 
Accordingly, we recommend that policies be implemented to ensure compliance with the School’s 
established protocol. 

Analysis of Expenditures: 

See attached schedule for an analysis of the School’s expenditures from July 1, 2017 to June 30,
2018. 

We wish to thank management and personnel for their support and assistance during our audit.  We 
would be pleased to further discuss the contents of this report with you at your convenience. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, Board of Trustees, and 
management of Harriet Tubman Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MBAF CPAs, LLC 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Harriet Tubman Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harriet Tubman Charter School (the 
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 

MBAF CPAs
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Harriet Tubman Charter School as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Harriet Tubman Charter School’s 2017 financial statements and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated 
October 31, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial 
statements from which it has been derived. 
Other Matter 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
31, 2018, on our consideration of Harriet Tubman Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Harriet Tubman Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY 
October 31, 2018 



                 
              
   
  
   
   
 

          

   

                    
            
      
                       
 

              

 
              

                                   

              

          

       
  

   
   

  

          

HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	

JUNE 30, 2018
	
(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR JUNE 30, 2017)
	

ASSETS 2018 2017
	

Cash 917,912 $ 353,994 $ 
Cash - restricted 75,000 75,000 
Grants and other receivables 849,347 773,170 
Prepaid expenses 32,313 8,663 
Deferred lease premium, net 85,000 170,000 
Property and equipment, net 406,363 676,880 
Security deposits 128,900 228,900 

2,494,835 $ 2,286,607 $ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 676,003 $ 285,405 $ 
Capital lease payable 106,346 153,414 
Accrued salary and other payroll related expenses 489,446 673,536 
Deferred revenue 14,164 -
Deferred rent 40,320 67,200 

1,326,279 1,179,555 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 1,168,556 1,081,687 
Temporarily restricted - 25,365 

1,168,556 1,107,052 

2,494,835 $ 2,286,607 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
	

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
	

(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)
	

Temporarily 

Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017 

OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 10,173,460 $ -$ 10,173,460 $ 10,460,394 $ 
Government grants and contracts 1,126,537 - 1,126,537 881,910 
Other income 32,340 - 32,340 7,715 
Released from restrictions 25,365 (25,365) - -

11,357,702 (25,365) 11,332,337 11,350,019 

EXPENSES 
Program services 10,303,388 - 10,303,388 10,129,986 
Management and general 960,010 - 960,010 691,258 
Fundraising 7,435 - 7,435 4,622 

11,270,833 - 11,270,833 10,825,866 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 86,869 (25,365) 61,504 524,153 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,081,687 25,365 1,107,052 582,899 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 1,168,556 $ -$ 1,168,556 $ 1,107,052 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
	

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
	

(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)
	

General Special Management 

Education Education Total Fundraising and General Total 2018 2017 

Personnel Services Costs No. of Positions 
Administrative staff personnel 12 600,137 $ $ 86,337 686,474 $ -$ 273,898 $ 273,898 $ 960,372 $ 586,916 $ 
Instructional personnel 72 2,782,671 760,846 3,543,517 - - - 3,543,517 3,523,931 
Non-instructional personnel 13 656,449 80,805 737,254 - 173,582 173,582 910,836 1,148,003 
Total salaries and staff 97 4,039,257 927,988 4,967,245 - 447,480 447,480 5,414,725 5,258,850 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,255,086 133,595 1,388,681 - 96,768 96,768 1,485,449 1,363,525 
Retirement 373,003 85,695 458,698 - 41,322 41,322 500,020 519,929 

Legal service - - - - 90,000 90,000 90,000 -

Accounting / Audit services - - - - 31,250 31,250 31,250 91,957 

Other purchased / Professional / Consulting services 608,203 119,073 727,276 - 50,480 50,480 777,756 886,503 

Building and land rent / Lease / Facility finance interest 650,143 149,365 799,508 - 72,025 72,025 871,533 825,067 

Repairs and maintenance 341,975 78,566 420,541 - 37,885 37,885 458,426 250,963 

Insurance 72,021 16,546 88,567 - 7,979 7,979 96,546 109,115 

Utilities 123,640 28,405 152,045 - 13,697 13,697 165,742 180,500 
Supplies / Materials 148,824 14,037 162,861 - - - 162,861 162,866 
Equipment / Furnishings 13,273 3,049 16,322 - 1,470 1,470 17,792 17,048 
Staff development 98,444 22,617 121,061 - 10,906 10,906 131,967 120,212 
Marketing / Recruitment 171 39 210 - 19 19 229 150 
Technology 88,021 20,222 108,243 - 9,751 9,751 117,994 92,249 
Food service 304,794 28,748 333,542 - - - 333,542 328,997 
Student services 69,998 6,602 76,600 7,435 - 7,435 84,035 101,217 
Office expense 61,756 14,188 75,944 - 12,400 12,400 88,344 105,329 
Depreciation and Amortization 314,427 72,237 386,664 - 34,833 34,833 421,497 343,489 
Other 15,758 3,622 19,380 - 1,745 1,745 21,125 67,900 

8,578,794 $ 1,724,594 $ 10,303,388 $ 7,435 $ 960,010 $ 967,445 $ 11,270,833 $ 10,825,866 $ 

Program Services Supporting Services 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
	
(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)
	

2018 2017
	

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from operating revenue and other income 11,396,104 $ 11,302,522 $ 
Cash received from interest income 32,340 6,879 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers (10,666,478) (10,736,289) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 761,966 573,112 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment (150,980) (244,861) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payments on capital lease (47,068) (44,665) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 563,918 283,586 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - BEGINNING OF YEAR 428,994 145,408 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - END OF YEAR 992,912 $ 428,994 $ 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Change in net assets 61,504 $ 524,153 $ 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 421,497 343,489 
Amortization of deferred lease premium 85,000 85,000 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Grants and other receivables (76,177) (148,101) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (23,650) (8,663) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 390,598 (154,220) 
Accrued salary and other payroll related expenses (184,090) (18,175) 
Refundable advances - (72,854) 

Security deposit 100,000 33,793 

Deferred revenue 14,164 -
Deferred rent (26,880) (11,310) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 761,966 $ 573,112 $ 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 

Cash and Cash - Restricted Consist of: 
Cash 917,912 $ 353,994 $ 
Cash - restricted 75,000 75,000 

Total 992,912 $ 428,994 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 6 -



 
 

    
 

 
    

   
 

 

   
 

 

     

 
 

                 
                     

                    
             

 
                  

                
    

 
                  

              
 
                

  
 
                 

                  
                    
                 

 
 
           

 
         

 
 
    
  

                
            

 
                   

                   
              

                     
 

 
      

 
                 

                  
       

 
                 

                  
                  
                
                   

     
 

                
 

 

HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

1. NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION 

Harriet Tubman Charter School (the “School”) is an educational corporation that operates in the borough of The 
Bronx, New York. On January 13, 2000, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York granted 
the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration. The School is now 
on its fifth charter renewal, which will expire on June 30, 2021. 

The School is designed to help students develop the skills to become leaders who read, think, write and 
communicate at high levels. The School’s mission is to prepare students for success throughout their college 
years and beyond. 

In fiscal year 2018, the School operated classes for students in kindergarten and grades one through eight. The 
School is split into two academies: K-4 Elementary Academy and 5-8 Junior Academy. 

The New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) provides transportation directly to a majority of the 
School’s students. 

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) and under the corresponding provisions of the New York State tax 
laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of 
Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the 
IRC. 

The School’s primary source of income is from government funding. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 

The classification of a School’s net assets and its support, revenues and expenses is based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the three classes of net assets – 
permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted – be displayed in the statement of financial 
position and that the amounts of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in the statement of 
activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or 
otherwise removed by actions of the School. 

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and 
removed by actions of the School pursuant to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the School 
reports the support as unrestricted. 

Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

- 7 -



 
 

    
 

 
    

   
 

 

   
 

 

          
 

 
    

 
                     
      

 
    

 
               
                   

                
                
                 

                 
 

  
 

                  
               

 
                
              

                  
      

 
                  
               
 

 
    
 

                 
                 
                   

                 
                 
                   

               
        

 
 

 
               
                   
                  
                

 
 

 
  

HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash – Restricted 

A restricted fund of $75,000 is held aside to cover debts in the event of the School’s dissolution, as required by 
The State University of New York. 

Grants and Other Receivables 

Grants and other receivables represent unconditional promises to give. Grants and other receivables that are 
expected to be collected within one year and recorded at net realizable value are $849,347 and $773,170 at June 
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The School evaluates the collectability of the receivables and employs the 
allowance method. The School has determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts for grants and other 
receivables is necessary as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. Such estimate is based on management’s assessments 
of the creditworthiness of its grantors, the age of its receivables, as well as current economic conditions. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is based on the number of 
students enrolled and is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures 
have not been incurred, if any, are reflected as refundable advances from state and local government grants in 
the accompanying statement of financial position. 

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the NYCDOE. If the charter school 
laws were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, the School's finances could be materially adversely 
affected. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are being depreciated on the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The School has established a $1,500 threshold above which assets are 
evaluated to be capitalized. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the life of the asset or the 
period covered by the charter. Durable curriculum materials in excess of $10,000 which are recognized to have 
value beyond their year of purchase are amortized over a 3-year period. Property and equipment acquired with 
certain government contract funds is recorded as an expense pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the 
government funding source retains ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense 
as incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized. 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the 
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes an 
impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis. 
Expenses that can be directly identified with the program or supporting service to which they relate are charged 
accordingly. Other expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting service 
classifications based upon benefits received. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated events through October 31, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Comparative Financial Information 

The June 30, 2018 financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total 
but not by net asset class. In addition, only certain of the notes to the financial statements for June 30, 2017 are 
presented. As a result, the June 30, 2017 comparative information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such June 30, 2017 information should be read in 
conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the summarized 
information was derived. 

Income Taxes 

The School follows the accounting standard for uncertainty in income taxes. The standard prescribes a minimum 
recognition threshold and measurement methodology that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance for 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition. 

The School files informational returns in the Federal and New York State jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the 
School is no longer subject to Federal, state, or local income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2015. 

The School believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns. Nonetheless, the 
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ materially 
from the amounts accrued for each year. Management believes that its nonprofit status would be sustained upon 
examination. 

Should there be interest on underpayments of income tax, the School would classify it as interest expense. The 
School would classify penalties in connection with underpayments of tax as other expense. 

Deferred Rent 

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, 
including future escalations of rent, rather than in accordance with lease payments. Deferred rent represents the 
adjustment to future rents as a result of using the straight-line method. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement 

In fiscal year 2018, the School adopted the accounting standards update which amends the cash flow statement 
presentation of restricted cash. The update requires amounts generally described as restricted cash and 
restricted cash equivalents be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-year 
and end-of-year total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The School adopted the update 
retrospectively for fiscal year 2017. The adoption of this update had no effect on the School’s change in net 
assets or cash flows. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update which 
affects the revenue recognition of entities that enter into either (1) certain contracts to transfer goods or services 
to customers or (2) certain contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates an entity should 
recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
the goods or services transferred by the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning of the year of 
implementation or retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and in 
interim periods in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted but no earlier 
than annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2016. The School is currently evaluating the effect 
the update will have on its financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which amends existing lease guidance. The 
update requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and related lease liability for many operating leases 
now currently off-balance sheet under current U.S. GAAP. Accounting by lessors remains largely unchanged 
from current U.S. GAAP. The update is effective using a modified retrospective approach for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2020, with early application permitted. The School is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its 
financial statements. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which aims to improve information provided to 
creditors, donors, grantors, and others while also reducing complexity and costs. The update is the first phase of 
a project regarding not-for-profits which aims to improve and simplify net asset classification requirements and 
improve the information presented and disclosed in financial statements about liquidity, cash flows, and financial 
performance. The update is effective retrospectively for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with earlier 
application permitted. The School is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its financial 
statements. 

In June 2018, the FASB issued an accounting standards update in an effort to clarify and improve the scope and 
the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The FASB believes the update 
should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (non-
reciprocal transactions) within the scope of not-for-profit guidance, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transaction 
subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional or not. The update is effective 
on a modified prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within 
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted. The School is currently 
evaluating the potential accounting, transition, and disclosure effects the update will have on its financial 
statements. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to 
conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30, 2018: 

2018 2017 Estimated Useful Life 
Leasehold improvements 1,894,554 $ 1,778,134 $ Term of lease 
Computer and equipment 1,179,962 1,174,196 3-5 years 
Durable curriculum materials 136,205 136,205 3 years 
Furniture and fixtures 290,296 261,502 7 years 
Playground 97,000 97,000 8 years 

3,598,017 3,447,037 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

and amortization (3,191,654) (2,770,157) 

406,363 $ 676,880 $ 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $421,497 and 
$343,489, respectively. 

4. COMMITMENTS 

On August 20, 2004, the School entered into a long-term lease agreement for its facilities expiring on December 
31, 2019. 

In July 2012, the School entered into another lease agreement for a second building expiring in June 2016. The 
School is currently negotiating an extension to the lease and continuing to occupy the building. Future minimum 
lease payments under these leases are as follows: 

June 30, 
2019 $ 342,600 
2020 171,300 

Total $ 513,900 

Rent expense charged to operations amounted to $729,975 and $729,961 for the years ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017, respectively. Deferred rent of $40,320 and $67,200 represents the obligation for the accumulated rent 
expense recorded by the School from the inception of the lease in excess of the required lease payments through 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

As part of the School’s lease agreement, the School was required to pay a security deposit of $128,900, which is 
included in the statement of financial position. 

The School entered into a surrender agreement with the landlord and the previous tenant on June 30, 2004. 
Under the terms of the agreement, cash payments and a promissory note totaling $1,275,000 were provided to 
the landlord and the previous tenant in exchange for the release from a commitment from a prior lease 
agreement. This amount is shown as a deferred lease premium in the financial statements and is being amortized 
over 15 years. At June 30, 2018, the balance of the deferred lease premium is $85,000, which is net of total 
accumulated amortization of $1,190,000. At June 30, 2017, the balance of the deferred lease premium was 
$170,000, which is net of total accumulated amortization of $1,105,000. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

4. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 

During the fiscal year 2016, the School leased five new copiers with the lease agreements set to expire in July 
15, 2020. The leases require a total monthly payment of $4,500. The original cost of the copiers under capital 
leases was $237,017, with accumulated depreciation of $138,261 and $90,858 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. Amortization expense totaled $47,403 for each of the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The 
imputed rate of interest is 5.25%. 

At June 30, 2018, the future minimum lease payments under the capital leases are as follows: 

June 30, 
2019 $ 54,000 
2020 54,000 
2021 4,500 

$ 112,500
	
Less amount representing interest (6,154)
	

$ 106,346 

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 

The School is a participating employer in the Teachers’ Retirement System of the City of New York (“TRS” or the 
“Plan”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system that provides pension benefits for all 
the teachers and administrative personnel employed by the Department of Education and certain employees of 
charter schools and the City University of New York. As a participating employer of the Plan, the School is not 
permitted to withdraw from the Plan. 

Employer contributions to the Plan are determined by the Plan’s Chief Actuary of the Office of the Actuary in 
accordance with State statutes and City laws, and include amounts to reduce the Plan’s underfunding. 

Accounting standards require employers participating in multiemployer plans to provide detailed quantitative and 
qualitative disclosures for these plans. TRS, which is sponsored by the City of New York, does not impose an 
expiration date on participating employers. The zone status is consistent with the Pension Protection Act and is 
for the Plan’s year-end at June 30, 2017. The zone status is based on information provided in the TRS 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which includes information from TRS’ actuary and is certified by TRS’ 
auditor. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded, plans in the yellow 
zone are less than 80 percent funded and plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. TRS did not 
report a rehabilitation plan. Information related to the Plan is comprised of the following: 

Contribution 

Pension Fund 

Plan 
Month/Day 
End Date Zone Status 2018 2017 

Teacher's Retirement System 06/30 
Red - As of June 
30, 2017 $500,020 $519,929 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The audited financial statements of the Plan, as of the year ended June 30, 2017, reported total assets at fair 
value of $75,607,076. The funded status of the Plan as of June 30, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation 
date, is as follows: 

Amounts in 
Thousands 

Actuarial value of assets $ 39,290,072
	
Actuarial accrued liability 69,625,608
	

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability		 $ (30,335,536) 

Funded status		 56.4% 

6. CONTINGENCIES 

The School is involved in legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. The School is being 
represented in these actions under an insurance policy for the period August 1, 2013 to August 1, 2014. The 
policy provides a per claim policy limit of $1,000,000 and an aggregate limit of $2,000,000 with a deductible of 
$10,000. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School has accrued $10,000 for the insurance deductible 
expense. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a material 
adverse impact on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no additional provision for such 
contingencies has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

7. RISK MANAGEMENT 

A.		 The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect 
itself from such risks. 

B.		 The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The 
governmental agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as 
additional funds for the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the 
possible disallowance or refund. 

8. CONCENTRATIONS 

A.		 Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash 
accounts at a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
insured limit of $250,000. 

B.		 The School received approximately 90% revenue and support from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE 
during the year ended June 30, 2018. 

C.		 The School’s grants and other receivables consist of three major grantors at June 30, 2018. 

- 13 -
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 
NUMBER 

PASS-THROUGH 
ENTITY IDENTIFYING 

NUMBER 
FEDERAL 

EXPENDITURES 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Pass-through New York State Education Department 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) 84.010 0021184120 481,272 $ 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (Title II) 84.367 0147184120 118,749 

TITLE IIIA, LEP 84.365 0293184120 22,923 

Total US Department of Education 622,944 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Pass-through New York State Education Department 

Child Nutrition Cluster 

School Breakfast Program (SBP) (Cluster) 10.553 310600860966 53,218 $ 

National School Lunch Program (NSLP) (Lunch) (Cluster) 10.555 310600860966 260,549 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 313,767 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 936,711 $ 

See independent auditor's report. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity 
of Harriet Tubman Charter School (a not-for-profit organization) (the “School”) under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because this Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the School, it is not intended and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the School. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented 
where available and when applicable. 

3. SUB-RECIPIENTS 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the School provided no federal awards to sub-recipients. 

4. INDIRECT COST RATE 

The School allocates indirect costs to various federal programs based upon the provisions of the award 
agreements. 

- 15 -



 

 
 

  
     

   

 

 
 
 
 

 
            

   
 

  
   

 
    

 
  

   
  

     
 

     
 

         
     

  
  

    
 

  
     

   
   

  
   

   
 

   
              

           
 

   
 

   
 
 
 

   
        

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government 
Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
Harriet Tubman Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Harriet Tubman Charter School (the “School”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 31, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the School in a separate letter dated October 31, 2018. 

An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 

MBAF CPAs
 
NEW YORK 440 Park Avenue South, 3rd Floor, New York NY 10016 | T 212 576 1400 F 212 576 1414  | www.mbafcpa.com
 

VALHALLA 400 Columbus Avenue, Suite 200E, Valhalla NY 10595 | T 914 741 0800 F 914 741 1034 | www.mbafcpa.com
 

http:www.mbafcpa.com
http:www.mbafcpa.com


 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    
 

          

   
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
   

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

New York, NY 
October 31, 2018 



 

 
 

  
     

   

 

 
 
 
 

      
   

 
  

   
 

       
 

  
      

   
    
 

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

   
  

        
         

    
          

       
  

 
      

 
   

          
 

   
 

           
  

  
 

      
 

   
       

  
  

   

  
         

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With The Major Federal Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Directors 
Harriet Tubman Charter School 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Harriet Tubman Charter School’s (the "School") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”) Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on the School’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. The School’s 
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of its 
federal award applicable to its federal program. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with the School’s major federal program based on our audit 
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School’s compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s compliance. 

Opinion on Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Harriet Tubman Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Harriet Tubman Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance. 

An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 

MBAF CPAs
 
NEW YORK 440 Park Avenue South, 3rd Floor, New York NY 10016 | T 212 576 1400 F 212 576 1414  | www.mbafcpa.com
 

VALHALLA 400 Columbus Avenue, Suite 200E, Valhalla NY 10595 | T 914 741 0800 F 914 741 1034 | www.mbafcpa.com
 

http:www.mbafcpa.com
http:www.mbafcpa.com


 

 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 

      
 

    
    

        
    

       
   

         
 

         
  

  
 

          
 

             
         

         
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
   

 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued) 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness 
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that have 
not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, NY 
October 31, 2018 



 
    

 
   

      
   
 

 

   
 

 

       

 
  
   
 
        
  
      
               
             
              
                
 
 
   
 
            
 
      
               
             
              
          
                     
 
 
     
 

    

       

            

 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness (es) identified? 
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

______ 

______ 
______ 

No 

No 
No 

__√___ 

__√___ 
__√___ 

Federal Awards 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program: Unmodified 

Internal control over major program: 
Material weakness (es) identified? 
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

______ 

______ 

______ 

No 

No 

No 

__√___ 

__√___ 

__√___ 

Identification of Major Program: 

Name of Federal Program CFDA Number Expenditures 

Title I 84.010 $ 481,272 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: Yes X No 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

SECTION II – COMPLIANCE FINDING 

None noted. 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None noted. 
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HARRIET TUBMAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

SECTION II – COMPLIANCE FINDING 

None noted. 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
­

Board of Regents
­

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Harriet Tubman Charter School
­
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
­

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
­
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

9,324,263 1,513,966 
9,246,798 1,467,151 

77,465 46,816 
650 56 
594 56 

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

15,000 1,148,996 
2,975 1,073,731 

12,025 75,264 

TOTAL 

12,002,225 
11,790,655 

211,570 
-

650 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
New York City $15,307.00 
School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

7,999,438 805,914 
- -
- -
- -
- -

7,999,438 805,914 

-
-
-
-
-

- 1,144,198 
- -
- -
- -
- -

1,144,198 

9,949,550 
-
-
-
-

9,949,550 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

42,912 565,520 

- -
- -

267,894 25,256 
8,310,244 1,396,690 

- 68,103 
481,272 -
119,675 10,231 
293,723 27,691 

- -
- -
- -

894,670 106,025 

914 86 
68,538 6,462 

- -
- -
- -

49,896 4,704 
- -

119,348 11,252 

9,324,263 1,513,966 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- 4,598 

- -
- -
- -

1,148,796 

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

15,000 -
- -
- 200 
- -
- -
- -
- -

15,000 200 

15,000 1,148,996 

613,030 

-
-

293,150 
10,855,730 

68,103 
481,272 
129,906 
321,414 

-
-
-

1,000,695 

16,000 
75,000 

200 
-
-

54,600 
-

145,800 

12,002,225 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management - - - - - - -
Instructional Management 3.00 421,959 39,781 - - - 461,740 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 168,247 15,862 - 2,203 71,237 257,549 
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Harriet Tubman Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 9,324,263 1,513,966 - 15,000 1,148,996 

Total Expenses 9,246,798 1,467,151 - 2,975 1,073,731 
Net Income 77,465 46,816 - 12,025 75,264 

Actual Student Enrollment 650 56 
Total Paid Student Enrollment 594 56 

TOTAL 

12,002,225 
11,790,655 

211,570 
-

650 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager - - - - - -
Administrative Staff 7.00 292,020 - - - 119,276 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 13 882,226 55,642 2,203 190,512 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 39.00 2,342,099 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 9.00 - 562,468 - - -
Substitute Teachers 2.00 77,531 7,309 - - -
Teaching Assistants 23.00 652,975 61,560 - - -
Specialty Teachers - - - - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 2.00 153,759 14,496 - - -
Other - 335,510 36,322 - - 8,169 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 75 3,561,873 682,155 8,169 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian 2.00 - - - - 62,540 
Security - - - - - -
Other 9.00 - - 291,741 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 11 354,281 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 99 4,444,100 737,798 2,203 552,962 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 370,342 61,483 - 184 46,080 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 758,153 125,867 - 376 94,334 
Retirement / Pension 410,598 68,166 - 204 51,089 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,539,093 255,516 763 191,503 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,983,192 993,314 2,966 744,466 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - - 24,250 
Legal - - - - -
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services 17,816 2,958 - 9 2,217 
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 667,055 84,461 - - 37,565 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 684,871 87,419 9 64,032 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

-
-

411,295 
1,130,584 

2,342,099 
562,468 

84,840 
714,535 

-
-

168,254 
380,000 

4,252,197 

-
-

62,540 
-

291,741 
354,281 

5,737,063 

478,089 
978,729 
530,057 

1,986,875 

7,723,938 

24,250 
-
-
-
-

23,000 
-
-

789,081 
836,331 
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Harriet Tubman Charter School 

Board Expenses - - - - 15,700 15,700 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 78,591 7,409 - - - 86,000 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 63,604 5,996 - - - 69,600 
Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 67,498 11,206 - - 8,432 87,136 
Telephone 44,929 7,459 - - 5,613 58,000 
Technology 50,265 8,345 - - 6,279 64,889 
Student Testing & Assessment 36,554 3,446 - - - 40,000 
Field Trips - - - - - -
Transportation (student) - - - - - -
Student Services - other 73,473 6,927 - - - 80,400 
Office Expense 35,633 5,916 - - 4,451 46,000 
Staff Development 77,463 12,860 - - 9,677 100,000 
Staff Recruitment 3,486 579 - - 434 4,499 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 21,302 3,537 - - 2,661 27,500 
School Meals / Lunch 328,985 31,015 - - - 360,000 
Travel (Staff) 4,454 739 - - 556 5,750 
Fundraising 3,873 643 - - 484 5,000 
Other 18,108 3,006 - - 2,262 23,376 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 908,217 109,083 56,550 1,073,850 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 80,157 13,307 - - 10,013 103,478 
Janitorial 255,473 42,413 - - 31,914 329,800 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 630,086 104,605 - - 78,711 813,402 
Repairs & Maintenance 73,893 12,268 - - 9,231 95,392 
Equipment / Furniture 14,303 2,375 - - 1,787 18,464 
Security 86,759 14,403 - - 10,838 112,000 
Utilities 158,024 26,235 - - 19,741 204,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,298,695 215,606 162,235 1,676,536 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 371,822 61,729 - - 46,449 480,000 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,246,798 1,467,151 2,975 1,073,731 11,790,655 

NET INCOME 77,465 46,816 - 12,025 75,264 211,570 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

New York City 650 56 706 
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,324,263 1,513,966 - 15,000 1,148,996 12,002,225 
Total Expenses 9,246,798 1,467,151 - 2,975 1,073,731 11,790,655 

Net Income 77,465 46,816 - 12,025 75,264 211,570 
Actual Student Enrollment 650 56 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 594 56 650 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Harriet Tubman Charter School 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 650 56 706 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,345 27,035 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 14,226 26,199 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,324,263 1,513,966 - 15,000 1,148,996 12,002,225 
Total Expenses 9,246,798 1,467,151 - 2,975 1,073,731 11,790,655 

Net Income 77,465 46,816 - 12,025 75,264 211,570 
Actual Student Enrollment 650 56 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 594 56 650 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

 

         

   
        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Title II 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Principal and Academy Directors 
Student activities Coordinator, Staff Developer and Director of Ops 



         
 

    
      

     

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Finance Specialists, Data Owner, Tech Manager, HR Rep, School Secretary,User 
Service Tech 

Social Worker and Guidance Counselor 
Bonus and Stipends (Afterschool and Summer Pay) 

Cafeteria Aides and Food Service Coordinator 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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EFGHIJKLJEFHMNNOPFGJQFRJSPGPFGTMFJMUJVWPXTQN 
YMWZNQGTMF[ 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7;=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ7=97;9<7;= 

CD@GDAEGFGD@JHGDJIEBGDGFDJJKDDGLLMEDGJFDHJIEGEDGFGDJNGDFGEJFE@ 
OE@EDFPEJGQEJEHHGDG@JGQEJEQFDGEDJ@EQGGLJQF@JMFHEJFDJ<7;8R;=JGGSFDHJMEEGFDJJGFDJEG@JGGJFGGDFEGJFDHJDEGFFD 

EDDGLLMEDGJGHJ@GAHEDG@JSFGQJHF@FPFLFGFE@TJKDJLF@QJLFDJAFJEJLEFDDED@TJFDHJ@GAHEDG@JSQGJFDEJEEGDGMFEFLLU 

HF@FHVFDGFJEHWJCDJFHHFGFGDTJHE@EDFPEJGQEJ@EQGGLX@JBLFD@JHGDJMEEGFDJJGDJMFYFDJJBDGJDE@@JGGSFDHJMEEGFDJ 

FG@JEDDGLLMEDGJFDHJDEGEDGFGDJGFDJEG@JFDJ<7;=R;vW 

\]SS^E_J_`ab]cJdVJeSEfEc_VgVPXGTMFJ\PQRTFh 

SPXHZTGOPFGi]GGHQXGTMFJEUUMHG[J_MjQHRJbPPGTFhJ_QHhPG[ 

OE@EDFPEJIEEDAFGMEDGJKHHGDG@JFDJ<7;8R;= 

KEGDGM lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ 
FEFLLU FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJHFMFLUJF@ 
OF@FHVF ELFJFPLEJHGDJHDEEJGDJDEHAEEHJLADEQTJFHJ@GJGQEFD 
DGFJEH FBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEHJPUJ< 

KDJLF@Q lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ ?FDJAF FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJHFMFLUJ@BEFY@ JE FDGGQEDJLFDJAFJEJFDJGQEJQGA@EQGLHTJFHJ@G ?EFDDED GQEFDJFBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEHJPUJ< @ 

NGAHEDG lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ 
@JSFGQ FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJEQFLHJnDEDk 
OF@FPFLFG QF@JFDJCKwJTJFHJ@GJGQEFDJFBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEH 
FE@ PUJ< 

OE@EDFPEJIEEDAFGMEDGJwLFD@JFDJ<7;=R;vk 

lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ 
FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJHFMFLUJF@ 
ELFJFPLEJHGDJHDEEJGDJDEHAEEHJLADEQTJFHJ@GJGQEFD 
FBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEHJPUJ< 

lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ 
FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJHFMFLUJ@BEFY@ 
FDGGQEDJLFDJAFJEJFDJGQEJQGA@EQGLHTJFHJ@GJGQEFD 
FBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEHJPUJ< 

lmCNJFDJGQEJLGGGEDUJFBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@TJF@Y@ 
FLLJFBBLFEFDG@JGGJFHEDGFHUJFHJGQEFDJEQFLHJnDEDk 
QF@JFDJCKwJTJFHJ@GJGQEFDJFBBLFEFGFGDJF@JSEFJQGEH 
PUJ< 
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SPGPFGTMFJEUUMHG[J_MjQHRJbPPGTFhJ_QHhPG[ 

OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJKHHGDG@JFDJ<7;8R;= OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJwLFD@JFDJ<7;=R;vk 

lmCNJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGGJFEFHEMFE lmCNJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGGJFEFHEMFE KEGDGM FDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDHJQF@JF FDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDHJQF@JFJDGPA@G FEFLLU DGPA@GJoFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDGJGEFM oFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDGJGEFMJSQFEQ OF@FHVF SQFEQJFDELAHE@JNGEFFLJFDHJKMGGFGDFLJ@ABBGDGW FDELAHE@JNGEFFLJFDHJKMGGFGDFLJ@ABBGDGW DGFJEH KpGEDHEHJHFUJBDGJDFM@JFDHJNFGADHFUJNEQGGL KpGEDHEHJHFUJBDGJDFM@JFDHJNFGADHFUJNEQGGL 

lmCNJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGGJFEFHEMFE KDJLF@Q FDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDHJQF@JF ?FDJAF DGPA@GJoFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDGJGEFM JE SQFEQJFDELAHEJHALLJGFMEJKq?JGEFEQED@TJGDLU?EFDDED PLEDHFDJJLEFDDFDJJBDGJDFM@TJFDHJFEFHEMFE @ FDGEDVEDGFGDJ@EDVFEE@W 

lmCNJGHHED@JFJCrJGEFEQFDJJEDVFDGDMEDGJFD 
JDFHE@J;R=JFDHJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGG NGAHEDG FEFHEMFEJFDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDH @JSFGQ QF@JFJDGPA@GJoFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDG OF@FPFLFG GEFMJSQFEQJFDELAHE@JNGEFFLJFDHJKMGGFGDFL FE@ @ABBGDGWJKpGEDHEHJHFUJBDGJDFM@JFDH
NFGADHFUJNEQGGL 

lmCNJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGGJFEFHEMFE 
FDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDHJQF@JFJDGPA@G 
oFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDGJGEFMJSQFEQ 
FDELAHEJHALLJGFMEJKq?JGEFEQED@TJGDLUJPLEDHFDJ
LEFDDFDJJBDGJDFM@TJFDHJFEFHEMFE 
FDGEDVEDGFGDJ@EDVFEE@W 

lmCNJGHHED@JFJCrJGEFEQFDJJEDVFDGDMEDGJFD 
JDFHE@J;R=JFDHJGHHED@JFDEEDGFVE@JFDJDEJFDHJGG 
FEFHEMFEJFDHJPEQFVFGDJBEDHGDMFDEE@TJFDH 
QF@JFJDGPA@GJoFMFLUJFDHJNGAHEDGJNABBGDG 
GEFMJSQFEQJFDELAHE@JNGEFFLJFDHJKMGGFGDFL 
@ABBGDGWJKpGEDHEHJHFUJBDGJDFM@JFDH
NFGADHFUJNEQGGL 
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EFGHIJKKJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPH 
WGGHXGXPF 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstuvtwrvx 

ypRz{OP|}M~�pNP�~POpM|}p{PM~SPMS��~�NO{MOz{PNOM���~�� 

YFOGHZTGXPFOJ[PHJTPQ\MSGXF]JGUSJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MSO 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJTPQ\MSGSJGUSJGN^MSOJGXGMSVJ_`Kab_`KcJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFV 

WVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJGPJHS\PHGJTUNF]SOJXFJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJOGN[[XF] 

VZHXF]JGUSJ_`Kab_`KcJOTUPPMJISNHdJeMSNOSJ\HPfXVSJGUSJ[ZMMJGXQSJSgZXfNMSFGJhiREjJP[ 
OGN[[JPFJkZFSJl`mJ_`KanJGUSJiREJ[PHJNFIJVS\NHGSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFS 

l`mJ_`KcnJGUSJiREJ[PHJNVVSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`KcnJNFVJGUS 

iREJP[JOGN[[JNVVSVJXFJFSoMIJTHSNGSVJ\POXGXPFOJ[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`Kc 

ZOXF]JGUSJGN^MSOJ\HPfXVSVd 

KdJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS 
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Staff Directory - Elementary Academy – Revised As Of May 24,2018 - Tentative
                      “Note: All email addresses begin with “first name.last name,” and end with “@htcsbronx.org”   

        Building Supervisors and Administrators Ext. Rm. 
Cleveland Person Principal 241 B01 
Jonathan Maniotis Elementary Academy Director 326 10
                                                                              Director of Operations
                                                                                 Michael Taylor 313 B15
                                                                                   Office Personnel 
Deborah Stringfellow Administrative Assistant to the Principal JA N/A 
Ayeshia Walker Human Resources Manager 317 B15 
Franklin Branch Data Owner 312 B06 
Vanessa Freytes Secretary 221 01

 Instructional Coach
   Yanique Kirlew 234 15 

Elementary Academy Teachers Ext. Rm. 
Melissa Carrol K-1 302 06 
Lloydette Simms K-2 306 06B 
Alcides Marte K-3 307 6 
Lana Bernath 1-1 322 05 
Katia Durant 1-1 SPED 322 05 
Aileen McGee 1-2 324 04 
Glyness Roach 1-3 244 03A 
Matthew Moran 2-1 SPED 323 07 
Aiesha King 2-1 323 07 
Gabrielle Gallinaro 2-2 319 08 
Michelle Avila 2-3 320 09 
Lerone Smith 3-1 301 02 
July Martinez 3-1 SPED 301 02 
Zena Nunez 3-2 321 11 
Cassandra Caceres  3-3 228 13 
Heather Moore 4-1 SPED 250 12 
Genesis Ortiz 4-1 250 12 
Yvette Betances 4-2 222 19
 Wade Hanley 4-3 223 20 
Bianca Raysor  SETTS / Elementary Academy 227 B12 
VACANCY Building Substitute Teacher 226 N/A 
Yunery Brito ELL Teacher 311 B04 
Lauren McGee AIS Instructor 331 B07

 Specials Ext. Rm. 
VACANCY Foreign Language (French) 226 18 
VACANCY Music 237 B14 
Sharmita Saha Dance 329 B 08 
John Derby Physical Education 325 17 
Marissa Walsh Art 224 22 

Teacher Assistants Ext. Rm. 
Tamer Washington K-1 302 06 
Melissa Rodriguez K-2 306 06B 
Debbie Benedith K-3 307 6 
Zuleika Baez 1-2 324 04 
Tanikwah Brown 1-3 244 03A 
Juliana Kehinde 2-2 319 08 
Justine Colon 2-3 320 13 
VACANCY 3-2 321 11 
Gisvet Delgado 3-3 228 13 
Raquel Pow 4-2 222 19 
Tiara Virella 4-3 223 20
                                                                               Support Personnel Ext. Rm. 
Sulaiman Laguda Technology Manager 327 03 
Elizabeth Malave Social Worker 240 B07 
Christina Balbi Parent Coordinator JA N/A 
Shannon D’Abreu Student Activities Coordinator                                                                                        233 B02 
Nsisongobong Asuquo -Asang School Nurse 232 B

 School Aide 
Tyasia Young Tanicqua Steele N/A N/A
                                                                                   Food Services Ext. Rm. 
Olufemi Onafuwa Food Services Coordinator 242 B10 
Brenda Savage                        April Coleman Cafeteria School Aide 242 B10 
Billy Johnson                         Sherrizette Mason Cafeteria School Aide 242 B10 
William Dixon  Marky Madera Cafeteria School Aide 242 B10
                                                                                Security Officers Ext. Rm. 
Brandon Ryant, Supervisor Dashaun Smith Nicole Smith 251 N/A 
Bianca Smith Jessenia Quinones Jose Figueroa 251 N/A
                                                                             Maintenance Personnel Ext. Rm. 
Marcus Smith Mark Haines N/A N/A

 Conference Room 249 Rm.
 Computer Lab 225 Rm.

 Teachers Lounge 305 Rm.

Building Excellence, Building our Future 

http:htcsbronx.org


                  
                     

              

        

  
                                

                                                                            
   

     

   

Note: All email addresses begin with “first name.last name,” and end with “@htcsbronx.org”

                                             Building Supervisors and Administrators Ext. Rm. 
Cleveland Person Principal 101 301 
Felicia Yarber Junior Academy Director 102 401

                        Director of Operations Ext. Rm.
                                                                                  Michael Taylor 103 202
                                                                     Office Personnel                                     Ext. Rm. 
Deborah Stringfellow Administrative Assistant to the Principal 100 201 
Rosalyn Addo Finance Specialist 121 202 
Franklin Branch ATS Owner 103 202 

Instructional Coach
                                                                                Yanique Kirlew 128 303B

 Junior Academy Teachers Ext. Rm. 
Sharon Garlick 5-1, ELA (5G) 113 309 
Brooke Kunze 5-1 SPED (5G & 6G) ELA/SS 113 309 
Terrell Lowery 5-2, Math (5G) 104 308 
Zaret Jimenez  5-3, SS (5G & 6G) 112 304 
Renee Irby 6-1, Math (6G) 106 303 
Fanny Castillo 6-1, SPED Math/Science (5G & 6G) 106 303 
Peter Morris 6-2, ELA (6G) 107 302 
VACANCY 6-3, Science (5G & 6G) 105 306 
Kerian Allen-Sewell 7-1, Math (7G) 109 403 
Tamara Grant 7-1, SPED (7G & 8G) Math/Science 109 403 
VACANCY 7-2, ELA (7G) 108 402 
Odeth Wade 7-3, SS (7G & 8G) 117 404 
Maribel Cardona 8-1, ELA (7G ) 114 409 
Michael Rose 8-1, SPED (7G & 8G) ELA/SS 114 409 
Everard Brown 8-2, Math (8G) 110 408 
Liberty Bennett 8-3, Science (7G & 8G) 111 406 
Levelot Jean Building Substitute N/A N/A 
Karen Asare AIS 120 205 
Filiz Gulay  ENL 118 101 
Bianca Raysor SETSS 130 305/307

 Specials Ext. Rm. 
Michael McCoy Physical Education/Health 115 204 
VACANCY Creative Writing 126 407 
VACANCY Foreign Language 116 405 
VACANCY Music 125 104

 Teacher Assistants Ext. Rm. 
Moussa Camara 5G Math /Science 104 308 
Lavasia James  5G ELA/SS 112 304 
Levar Jackson 6G Math /Science 105 306 
VACANCY 6G ELA/SS 107 302 
Sharon Gual 7G ELA/SS 108 402 
VACANCY 7G Math/Science 117 403 
Denecia Charles 8G ELA/Math 110 408

                Support Personnel Ext. Rm. 
Christina Balbi Parent Coordinator 128 303B 
Shirley Mondesir Guidance Counselor 129 303A 
Elizabeth Malave Social Worker 129 303A 
Augustine Rhem User Service Technician 119 410 
Shannon D’Abreu Student Activities N/A 100 
Camella Colbourne School Nurse 124 203

 School Aide Ext. Rm. 
Candice Scarlett-Coy  6G N/A 310 
VACANCY                                        7G N/A 310 
Madeline Santiago  8G N/A 310

               Food Services Ext. Rm. 
Olufemi Onafuwa Food Services Coordinator 131 105 
Delores Crespo Cafeteria School Aide 131 105 
April Coleman Cafeteria School Aide 131 105 
Sherrizette Mason                       Cafeteria School Aide 131 105 
William Dixon Cafeteria School Aide 131 105 

Ext. Rm. 
Jamel DeBerry, Supervisor Shaquan Alves Jessica Rodriguez 123 N/A 
Shidina Knowings Ohecah Sweeney Malikah Sealy 123 N/A

 Maintenance Ext. Rm. 
Roberto Rodriguez Darnell Hargett  Heriberto Hernandez 122 102 

http:htcsbronx.org
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S M T W T F S 
1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31 

Days in session: Staff 154/Students 143 

May 

S M 

5 6 
12 13 
19 20 
26 27 

T 

7 
14 
21 
28 

W 
1 
8 

15 
22 
29 

T 
2 
9 

16 
23 
30 

F 
3 

10 
17 
24 
31 

S 
4 

11 
18 
25 

31 1 
NYS ELA Test 
Grades 3-8 

2 
NYS ELA Test 
Grades 3-8 

3 
NYS ELA Test 
Grades 3-8 

4 5 6 

7 
NYSESLAT 
(Speaking) Begins 

8 9 10 11 12 
End of Third Marking 
Period 

13 

14 

21 
Spring Recess -
School Closed 

15 

22 
Spring Recess -
School Closed 

16 

23 
Spring Recess -
School Closed 

17 18 
1/2 Day Dismissal @ 
11:30 - Parent/ 
Teacher 
Conferences 1-4,5-7 

Spring Recess -
School Closed 

24 25 
Spring Recess -
School Closed 

Spring Recess -
School Closed 

19 

26 

20 

27 

28 29 30 1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

9 



31

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

26 27 28 29 30 31

1 2 3 4 5 6
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May April 
S M 

1 
T 

2 
W 

3 
T 

4 
F 

5 
S 

6 

June 

S M T W T F S 
1 

2019 
7 

14 
21 

8 
15 
22 

9 
16 
23 

10 
17 
24 

11 
18 
25 

12 
19 
26 

13 
20 
27 

2 
9 

16 

3 
10 
17 

4 
11 
18 

5 
12 
19 

6 
13 
20 

7 
14 
21 

8 
15 
22 

28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 

Days in session: Staff 176/Students 165 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

NYS Science 
Performance Test - 
Grades 4 and 8 
Progress Report #4 

28 29 30 1 2 3 4 
NYS Math Test NYS Math Test NYS Math Test 
Grades 3-8 Grades 3-8 Grades 3-8 
Extended Day ends 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
NYSESLAT 
(Listening, Reading, 
Writing) Begins 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
NYSESLAT 
(Speaking, Listening, 
Reading, Writing) 
Ends1/2 Day 
Dismissal @ 11:30 -
Staff PD 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
NYS Science NYS Science 
Performance Test Performance Test - 
Begins - Grades 4 Grades 4 and 8 
and 8 

26 27 28 29 30 31 1 
Memorial Day - NYS Science NYS Science NYS Science 

School Closed
 Performance Test - Performance Test - Performance Test - 

Grades 4 and 8 Grades 4 and 8 Grades 4 and 8 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

10 
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1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8

30

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

�

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

June 
2019 

May 

S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31 

Days in session: Staff 195/Students 181 

July 

S 

7 
14 
21 
28 

M 
1 
8 

15 
22 
29 

T 
2 
9 

16 
23 
30 

W 
3 

10 
17 
24 
31 

T 
4 

11 
18 
25 

F 
5 

12 
19 
26 

S 
6 

13 
20 
27 

26 27 28 29 30 31 
NYS Science 
Performance Test 
Ends - Grades 4 and 
8 

2 3 4 5 6 7 
NYS Science Written 
Test - Grades 4 and 
8 

Eid al-Fitr - school 
closed 

Town Hall Meeting 
#5 

No Students - Staff 
Administrative Day 

9 10 11 12 13 14 
1/2 Day Dismissal @ 
11:30 - Staff PD 

16 17 18 19 20 21 
End of Fourth 
Marking Period 

23 24 25 26 27 28 
Kindergarten 
Graduation - 1/2 Day 
Dismissal @11:30 

Grade 4 Step-up 
Ceremony - 1/2 Day 
Dismissal @11:30 

Grade 8 Graduation 
Last Day of School -
All Grades - 1/2 Day 
Dismissal @11:30 

All Staff Report - 
Last Day for Staff 

School Closed 

30 1 2 3 4 5 

1 

8 

15 

22 

29 

6 

11 
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1 2 3 4 5 6

28 29 30 31

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
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June August 
S M T W T F SS M T W T F S 

1 2 31July 4 5 6 7 8 9 102 3 4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 16 179 10 11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 23 2416 17 18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 30 312019 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 

Days in session: Staff 0/Students 0 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

30 1 2 3 4 5 
Independence Day -
School Closed 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31 1 2 3 

5 6 7 8 9 10 

12 

6 

4 



�

Month
 
Year 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

13 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	oL 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Annual Financial Statement Audit Report School Name: Harriet Tubman Charter School Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 Primary District of Location (If NYC select NYC DOE): New York City Department of Education If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #9 School Fiscal Contact Name: Cleveland Person School Fiscal Contact Email: School Fiscal Contact Phone: School Audit Firm Name: MBAF CPAs, LLC School Audit Contact Name: Marc Taub School Audit Contact Email: School Audit Contact Phone: Audit Period:
	Annual Financial Statement Audit Report School Name: Harriet Tubman Charter School Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 Primary District of Location (If NYC select NYC DOE): New York City Department of Education If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #9 School Fiscal Contact Name: School Fiscal Contact Email: School Fiscal Contact Phone: School Audit Firm Name: MBAF CPAs, LLC School Audit Contact Name: Marc Taub School Audit Contact Email: School Audit Contact Phone: Audit Period: 2017-18 Prior Ye
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Cash 917,912 $ 353,994 $ Cash -restricted 75,000 75,000 Grants and other receivables 849,347 773,170 Prepaid expenses 32,313 8,663 Deferred lease premium, net 85,000 170,000 Property and equipment, net 406,363 676,880 Security deposits 128,900 228,900 2,494,835 $ 2,286,607 $ LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS LIABILITIES Accounts payable and accrued expenses 676,003 $ 285,405 $ Capital lease payable 106,346 153,414 Accrued salary and other payroll related expenses 489,446 673,536 Deferred revenue 14,164 -Deferred r
	OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT State and local per pupil operating revenue 10,173,460 $ -$ 10,173,460 $ 10,460,394 $ Government grants and contracts 1,126,537 -1,126,537 881,910 Other income 32,340 -32,340 7,715 Released from restrictions 25,365 (25,365) --11,357,702 (25,365) 11,332,337 11,350,019 EXPENSES Program services 10,303,388 -10,303,388 10,129,986 Management and general 960,010 -960,010 691,258 Fundraising 7,435 -7,435 4,622 11,270,833 -11,270,833 10,825,866 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 86,869 (25,365) 61,5
	General Special Management Education Education Total Fundraising and General Total 2018 2017 Personnel Services Costs No. of Positions Administrative staff personnel 12 600,137 $ $ 86,337 686,474 $ -$ 273,898 $ 273,898 $ 960,372 $ 586,916 $ Instructional personnel 72 2,782,671 760,846 3,543,517 ---3,543,517 3,523,931 Non-instructional personnel 13 656,449 80,805 737,254 -173,582 173,582 910,836 1,148,003 Total salaries and staff 97 4,039,257 927,988 4,967,245 -447,480 447,480 5,414,725 5,258,850 Fringe bene
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Cash received from operating revenue and other income 11,396,104 $ 11,302,522 $ Cash received from interest income 32,340 6,879 Cash paid to employees and suppliers (10,666,478) (10,736,289) NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 761,966 573,112 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of property and equipment (150,980) (244,861) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Payments on capital lease (47,068) (44,665) NET INCREASE IN CASH 563,918 283,586 CASH AND CASH -R
	Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30, 2018: 2018 2017 Estimated Useful Life Leasehold improvements 1,894,554 $1,778,134 $Term of lease Computer and equipment 1,179,962 1,174,196 3-5 years Durable curriculum materials 136,205 136,205 3 years Furniture and fixtures 290,296 261,502 7 years Playground 97,000 97,000 8 years 3,598,017 3,447,037 Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,191,654) (2,770,157) 406,363 $ 676,880 $ Depreciation and amortization expense for the years en
	U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Pass-through New York State Education Department Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) 84.010 0021184120 481,272 $ Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (Title II) 84.367 0147184120 118,749 TITLE IIIA, LEP 84.365 0293184120 22,923 Total US Department of Education 622,944 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Pass-through New York State Education Department Child Nutrition Cluster School Breakfast Program (SBP) (Cluster) 10.553 310600860966 53,218 $ National School Lunch 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Board Expenses ----15,700 15,700 Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 78,591 7,409 ---86,000 Special Ed Supplies & Materials ------Textbooks / Workbooks 63,604 5,996 ---69,600 Supplies & Materials other ------Equipment / Furniture 67,498 11,206 --8,432 87,136 Telephone 44,929 7,459 --5,613 58,000 Technology 50,265 8,345 --6,279 64,889 Student Testing & Assessment 36,554 3,446 ---40,000 Field Trips ------Transportation (student) ------Student Services -other 73,473 6,927 ---80,400 Office Expense 35,633 
	TOTAL ENROLLMENT 650 56 706 REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,345 27,035 -EXPENSES PER PUPIL 14,226 26,199 -PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. REGULAR EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & GENERAL TOTAL Total Revenue 9,324,263 1,513,966 -15,000 1,148,996 12,002,225 Total Expenses 9,246,798 1,467,151 -2,975 1,073,731 11,790,655 Net 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	SOTJbHRJG`RHRJZWHRJG`OGJc •pN 1 •Ł•SzpS•RSpp yzQNOppt•p|•pz ~SQRMOŁ•}••||ŁOOppP3Q}SzMŁNŁ}•••||ŁOO pp •pN s vvtrvtwr vs vvtrvtwr v4 4 s 8p•P•••p} yzpMNQzpz ~SQRMOŁ•}••||ŁOOppP3Q}SzMŁNŁ}•••||ŁOO pp •pN u vvtrvtwr vw vvtrvtwr vx vr x •Mz••}).(Q}•Mz yzQNOppt•p|•pz 3Ł}M}Rp••||ŁOO pp •pN u r7trxtwr vw vvtrvtwr vx 7P•zP•pNN 4 *pNp••*Ł••ŁN yzQNOppt•p|•pz 3Ł}M}Rp••||ŁOOppP3Q}SzMŁNŁ}•••||ŁOO pp •pN w rutrstwr v6 vvtrvtwr vx 7P•zP•pNN 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Staff Directory - Elementary Academy – Revised As Of May 24,2018 - Tentative
	SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY NYS Science Performance Test - Grades 4 and 8 Progress Report #4 




